
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RICHMOND PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 

February 26, 2020 
 
 
 

Broad Rock Branch Library 
4820 Old Warwick Road 

Richmond, Virginia 23224 
 
 

11:45 a.m. 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 
Richmond Public Library Board 

101 E. Franklin Street 
Richmond, VA 23219 

(804) 646-4256 / fax: (804) 646-7685  
 

Library Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, February 26, 2020 

11:45 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A  
 
Call to order:   11:45 a.m. Mr. William Yates 

 
Consent Agenda:  Mr. William Yates 

• Approval of Agenda    
• Approval of Minutes   
• Approval of Pending Gifts   
• Approval of Statistical Report 

 
 
 

Public Comment Period:     
 

Reports: 12:00 p.m.  
• Library Friends   Ms. DeBoer/Mr. Dishon 
• Library Foundation   Ms. Hansen 

 
Administration Reports:  Mr. Firestine 

 
Board Committee Reports: 12:10 p.m.  

• Chairman  Mr. Yates 
• Finance Committee  Ms. Weaver 
• Facilities Committee  Mr. Firestine 
• Governance Committee  Mr. Lydiard 

 
Unfinished Business: 12:30 p.m. Mr. Yates 

• Strategic Plan Updates – Review and 
Consider Updates. 
 

  

New Business  
 

12:40 p.m. 
 

Mr. Yates 
 

Adjourn  
 

 Mr. Yates 

Next Meeting:   
March 25, 2020 
North Avenue Branch Library 
2901 North Avenue 
Richmond, Virginia 23222 
11:45 a.m.  

Page 2 of 21 
 



Library Board Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
January 22, 2020 

 
PRESENT: Vice Chair David Lydiard, Emily Altman, Barbara Burton, Daisy Weaver, Janet Woody 
 
STAFF: Scott Firestine, Clay Dishon, City Attorney Laura Drewry, Cheryl Clarke, Karin Hansen, 

Gianna Pack,  
 
ABSENT:  Chair William Yates, Christine Peterson, Tanya Francis, and Friends of the Library 

Chair Ruth DeBoer 
 

Meeting of the Richmond Public Library (RPL) Library Board of Trustees (LBOT) was called to order by 
Vice Chairman David Lydiard at 11:52 a.m. without a quorum at the Main Library located at 101 E. Franklin 
Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219.  A quorum was established at 11:55 a.m. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Approve the December 4, 2019 Meeting Minutes and Statistical Reports as submitted, and the 
revised Pending Gifts Report that was handed out in the meeting. 
 Motion: Daisy Weaver, Second by Emily Altman – Approved Unanimously. 
 

Public Comment 
Period 

None present. 
 

REPORTS 
Friends of the 
Library (FOL)  
 
Clay Dishon 
 

• The children’s book illustration artwork should be hung up in the branches by early 
February. These are the prints that were bought during the Friends of the Library 
60th Anniversary celebration.  There will be a presentation once they get hung. 

• We were glad to be able to provide funds for the RPL library employees to spend a social 
evening together bowling at River City Roll on January 24 in the evening. Everyone had a 
good time and morale was boosted. 

• The Half-Price Sale went well. We continue to try to find ways to shift the older stock out. 

• We are pursuing a great suggestion from RPL that the Friends solicit sponsors for our book 
sales to bring in a little more money and increase publicity. They are looking into getting 
bags for people to carry their books.  Mr. Lydiard inquired how much money was raised 
in the last book sale.  Mr. Dishon will report the amount at the next meeting. 

 
Library 
Foundation  
 
Karin Hansen 
 

• Wrapping up the Annual Fund campaign/drive.  Received gifts.  This was the first year that 
the Foundation did more electronic communications in addition to the regular paper 
mailing.  Gifts were up 20%.  The Foundation will be expanding its electronic mailing list 
and other social media. 

• Since the audit came back clear of any findings, focus will return to pursing grants and 
finding sponsorships on events that will be hosted this year. 

• The Foundation partnered with the Friends of the Library to fund the RPL staff bowling 
night. 

  

Page 3 of 21 
 



REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
Administration 
 
Scott Firestine 

Highlights and Additions to Director’s Report:  During the Director’s Report, Mr. Firestine 
highlighted on the following items: 
• Hiring:  Interviews and recruitment are ongoing.  

• RFP Integrated Library System (ILS): A test server based on the current ILS was built 
January 26. RPL testing of communications and installed applications will begin and 
should take about 30 days to complete.  The target to completion is 60-90 days to be on 
the SAAS production server. 

• RFP for the Master Plan:  The RFP was awarded to Enteros Design.  

• First Floor Restroom Renovations:  Ms. Clarke reported the contractors are about 
35% complete. Paint colors were selected. Wall and electrical is complete for both 
restrooms. New plumbing throughout except for the lactation restroom, which used 
existing plumbing. Contractors are on schedule with a target date for completion by the 
end of April. 

• Macmillan Boycott: Following the Macmillan Boycott, the LBOT asked Mr. Firestine to 
draft a statement to Macmillan and to RPL patrons at the December 4, 2019, meeting.  
Mr. Firestine presented the documents as well as the Question and Answer sheet for a 
better understanding.  All documents will be posted to the rvalibrary.org website. 

• Special Funds/Law Library: The City Auditors’ Office is in the process of conducting a 
City-wide audit of all Special Funds.   

• Eviction Exhibit: HOME has constructed and installed an exhibit that details the eviction 
problem in Richmond.  It will be on display in the Main Library until March 30, 2020.  

• Floating Collections: In the process of floating the large print and audio book collections. 

• Access RVA Comcast Channel: Ms. Weaver asked if the reallocated position to oversee 
the operations of the program was planned. Mr. Firestine responded that it was not initially 
planned, but we have determined that we must have more oversight of the TV station.  
There was an opportunity to shift a VRIP employee position from the Technical Services 
area to meet this public service need. 
  

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Chair 
 
William Yates 
 

No Report. 
 

Finance 
 
Daisy Weaver 
Christine Peterson 
Scott Firestine 
 

Ms. Weaver reported the current budget was on target. On the Special Fund Revenue, 51% has 
been recognize, which is good.  The City Auditors are conducting a City-wide Audit of the 
Special Funds.   
 
Mr. Firestine has submitted his proposed budget to the City for consideration with 
approximately a $2M increase, which will fully fund all positions including vacant positions. 
Ms. Weaver also mentioned from the Operational side of the request there were increases for 
materials/books, technology access, and records management. 
 

  

Page 4 of 21 
 



BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
Facilities 
 
Scott Firestine 

Mr. Firestine introduced Owner Gil Entzminger of Enteros Design, who won the competitive 
RFP for the Main Library Master Plan. Mr. Entzminger gave a brief overview of the 
architecture firm, other library project experience, and its direction of gaining stakeholders’ 
input.  The park will also be a part of the plans.  Once the planning process is over, RPL will 
have a more defined picture of the Main Building project and Foundation support needed. 
 

Governance 
 
David Lydiard 

Mr. Lydiard reported currently there are no applicants as of date for the vacancies on the Board.  
Still actively looking for someone with facilities management experience. 
 
Mr. Lydiard also mentioned Tanya Francis has not attended a meeting since April 2019. He 
stated the By-laws of missing four consecutive meetings, a person can be removed from the 
Board.  However, no one has ever exercised that request. The City Clerk’s office has not 
responded back on whether or not Ms. Francis will be removed.  Mr. Lydiard will update at 
the next meeting. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

• Strategic Plan – Ms. Woody asked if she could have more time to review the Strategic Plan updates to have a 
better understanding before voting.  Mr. Lydiard recommended to table further discussions and vote of approval 
at the February 26, 2020 meeting.  The LBOT members present were in agreement. 

• Mr. Lydiard inquired about the Verizon Tower Project on the top of the Main Library Roof.  Mr. Firestine reported 
he had not heard anything from the last update, but will reach out to Verizon on the progress.   

• Ms. Woody inquired about the loan periods and fines.  Mr. Firestine reported he was in the process on receiving 
feedback from staff on going fine free.  RPL went fine free for patrons under the age of 18 since April 2019 and 
it has been working. Patrons are still responsible for the lost materials. If the materials are not returned within 
45 days, the patron is then billed for the materials. Mr. Firestine would like to come back to the Board in February 
or March to consider expanding fine free to all patrons and eliminate fines altogether.  

• Mr. Lydiard asked if there was a report of charging off lost books.  He would like to know what the number is to 
date.  Mr. Firestine stated that was a Unique Management Report and he would bring the report to the February 
meeting. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approve the 2020 RPL Holiday Schedule. 
 Motion: Daisy Weaver, Second by Janet Woody – Approved Unanimously. 
 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:53 p.m. by unanimous consensus from the 
members that were present in the meeting. 
 
The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, February 26, 2020, at 11:45 a.m. at the Broad Rock Branch Library 
located at 4820 Old Warwick Road, Richmond, Virginia. 
      
 
 Approved:       
        Mr. William Yates, Chair  
Recorder: Gianna Pack 
 Executive Assistant 
  

Page 5 of 21 
 



Director’s Report 
February 2020 
Director Activities for January 18 through February 20, 2020: 

 
Jan 22 OEM and Library Meeting – Main Library 
Jan 23 Follow-up Library FY21 Performance Measures and Service Codes – City Hall 
Jan 25 Lamar Giles in Conversation with Meg Medina – Main Library 
Jan 27 Good Shepherd Book Club – Main Library 
Jan 27 City Council Meeting – City Hall 
Jan 28  RPL Security Assessment Review – All Branches  
Jan 29 Capital Projects Task Force 2.0 for FY22 – City Hall 
Feb 10 City Council Meeting – City Hall 
Feb 11 Attended PCard Annual Training – Police Training Facility 
Feb 14 Attended CALD Meeting – Atlee Station Branch of the Pamunkey Regional Library System 
Feb 16-17 Library Locations Closed in Observance of Presidents’ Day 
Feb 24  RVAH2O International Stakeholders Meeting – DPU 
Feb 24 City Council Meeting – City Hall 
Feb 25 DEQ319 Kick Off Meeting – West End Branch Library 

 
Hiring Update: Interviewing and recruiting for vacant positions – Ongoing. RPL has 15 FTE funded vacancies.  
This problem is necessitating that we utilize temporary workers and overtime due to the long delays within the 
City of Richmond’s HR system.  
• Management Analyst, Associate-RVA Access Public TV:  Posted February 9 
• Library Technician, Senior – Various Locations:  Posted February 16 
• Library Technician – North Avenue:  Posted February 16 
• Library/Community Services Manager Nideria Brown resigned on February 14 
• Library Technician, Senior Debra Bynum will retire on February 29 with 30 years of service. 

 
RFP for the Integrate Library System (ILS on-line catalog) Update:  Test database for replacement of the 
SIRSI ILS is complete as of February 7, 2020.  Staff are testing applications and services to transition from a 
City hosted server service to SAAS by the vendor. 
 
Migration of the library’s catalog to a SAAS solution for improved search, database control, and 
maintenance is in Test/Production.  The SAAS test server was built based on the Library’s current 
ILS database.  The Library is testing communication, functionality, and features before the transition 
from Library owned servers to remote servers.  Target to complete the transition is March 15, 2020.  
Once that is complete, upgrades of the system will begin. 
 
RFP for the Main Library Facilities Master Plan Update:  The RFP Master Plan for the Main Library was 
cancelled due to errors in the procurement process. The RFP must be rebid for a third time.  The Main Library 
Renovation Master Plan is currently in process with DPS and Legal for review and a new rewrite of the RFP. 
 
Access RVA Comcast Channel Update:  On Friday, February 7, winds took out the Public Access station 
Comcast and Verizon wire feeds.  Large limbs from a tree landed on the service and knocked it down for about 
half a day.  By 5:00 p.m. the service was restored.  The tree was removed February 14. 
 
  

Page 6 of 21 
 



Director’s Report (Continued) 
February 2020 
 
 
 
1st Floor Restroom Renovation Update:  Construction continues of new toilet rooms on the first floor 
at the Main Library.  Internal demolition of walls, fixtures, and flooring is complete.  Wiring, plumbing, 
framing, and construction is in process.  When the project is complete, the Main Library will have a 
safer, updated toilet room facilities on the first floor, a lactation room for nursing mothers, and a family 
restroom for caregivers.  Target for completion is May 30, 2020. 
 
Verizon Tower Update:  On June 25, 2019, the Library Director was notified by email that Verizon staff will 
review the site and install towers on the Main Library rooftop.  Board members were notified at the June 26, 
2019, Board meeting.  In January 2019, CAO Selina Cuffee-Glenn signed an approved City Council Ordinance 
2018-264 that authorized a contract with Verizon to place these towers on the rooftop of the Main Library. The 
documents were emailed to the LBOT members. Ms. Pack emailed copies to the new Board members to bring 
them current.   
 
On January 30, 2020, starting at 7:00 a.m., the Verizon contractor, Ruch Holiman, Carrick Contracting 
Corporation, put electrical supplies on top of the Main Library rooftop with a crane.  The work lasted about 
4-5 hours. There is still no word from Verizon on when they will begin the actual work.  
 
Legislations:  The Library Friends, Library Board of Trustees, and the RPL Foundation are supporting 
legislations moving through the General Assembly that would provide full-funding for state aid to libraries.  This 
revenues comes to the City from the state to support books.  If successful it would raise RPL's amount by 
$126,257 over the next 4 years. 
 
Events:   
• On January 25 in the Main Library, young adult authors Meg Medina, 2019 Newberry Author, and Lamar 

Giles held a book launch and conversation upon the release of Lamar's book, Not So Pure and Simple. 
Mr. Giles writes young adult thrillers for young male African Americans. 

• On February 7 and February 14 at the Main Library, the Environmental Film festival celebrated 
with films about progress on environmental issues in Richmond  

 
Friends of the Library Book Sale:  The November 1-3, 2019 took in approximately $14,000. The Half Price 
Book Sale on January 10-12, 2020 took in approximately $1,500, which is not a money maker as the other book 
sales, because it is mostly an opportunity to clear some space for new books.   
 

Page 7 of 21 
 



 
Insert Circulation Report 
CIRCULATION                         

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total YTD % 
Change 

Belmont 

FY17 12,068  12,314    9,973    9,766    9,727    9,071    9,709    9,715  10,114    9,238    9,446  10,411  121,552    
FY18 10,836  10,486    8,290    8,385    7,353    6,096    7,651    7,545    8,099    7,402    7,632    7,864    97,639   

FY19   8,429    8,074    8,103    7,888    7,303    6,144    7,099    6,630    8,077    6,712    6,436    7,110    88,005  -11% 
FY20   7,451    7,560    7,207    7,097    5,795    5,963    6,495              47,568  -9% 

  

Broad Rock 

FY17   4,883    4,773    4,248    4,706    3,966    3,454    3,729    3,192    3,595    3,377    3,851    4,136    47,910    
FY18   4,574    4,062   3,726    3,809    3,665    3,096    3,308    2,986    3,132    3,304    2,910    3,289    41,861    
FY19   3,910    3,609    2,671    3,217    2,505    2,086    2,488    2,801    2,843    2,389    2,419    3,119    34,057  -23% 
FY20   3,652    3,036    2,939    2,998    2,323    2,389    2,331              19,668  -7% 

  

East End 

FY17   4,572    4,371    3,581    3,420    2,945    3,029    3,463    2,981    3,529    4,977    3,515    3,460    43,843    
FY18   3,635    3,481    3,033    2,948    2,632    2,281    2,698    2,574    2,838    2,637    2,865    3,325    34,947    
FY19   2,996    2,648    2,614    2,820    2,587    2,176    2,915    2,451    2,249    2,046    2,087    2,534    30,123  -16% 
FY20   2,696    2,663    2,476    2,574    2,020    2,240    2,219              16,888  -31% 

  

Ginter Park 

FY17   6,247    5,924    5,374    5,770    5,031    4,517    4,812    4,582    5,401    4,641    4,868    5,310    62,477    
FY18   5,751    6,070    5,338    5,152    4,854    3,898    4,327    4,370    4,522    4,653    4,023    5,263    58,221    
FY19   5,211    5,163    4,864    4,278    3,762    2,812    3,864    3,653    4,408    3,384    4,174    4,381    49,954  -17% 
FY20   4,397    4,580    4,030    3,823    3,332    3,021    3,599              26,782  -7% 

  

Hull Street 

FY17   3,174    3,245    3,088    3,131    3,400    2,477    2,816    2,962    2,989    2,348    2,766    2,843    35,239    
FY18   2,947    3,155    2,178    2,106    2,202    1,772    2,218    2,304    2,241    2,034    1,824    2,147    27,128    
FY19   2,010    2,305    3,323    1,844    1,838    1,852    2,287    1,870    1,854    1,828    1,976    2,026    25,013  -8% 
FY20   3,082    1,912    2,065    2,508    2,128    2,012    2,012              15,719  -14% 

  

Main 

FY17 12,103  12,264  10,330  10,655    9,611    9,049    9,629    9,600  10,821    8,969    9,826  10,528  123,385    
FY18 10,304  11,144    9,794    9,946    9,126    7,750    9,149    8,706    9,223    8,069    7,769    8,155  109,135    
FY19   8,719    8,877    8,655    9,774    9,099    8,202    9,418    8,749    9,621    9,177    8,795    9,300  108,386  -1% 
FY20 10,098    9,666    8,766    9,068    7,683    7,728    8,141              61,150  -16% 

  
  

Page 8 of 21 
 



 
CIRCULATION (CONTINUED)                         

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total YTD % 
Change 

North Avenue 

FY17   4,235    4,448    3,768    3,564    3,308    3,260    2,972    2,943    3,186    2,714    3,017    2,985    40,400    
FY18   3,112    3,455    3,238    3,802    3,011    2,562    3,094    3,328    3,093    2,580    2,271    2,269    35,815    
FY19   2,979    2,493    2,709    2,918    2,390    2,059    2,604    2,264    2,367    2,887    2,243    2,657    30,570  -17% 
FY20   2,962    2,210    2,462    2,197    1,689    1,925    2,731              5% 

  

West End 

FY17      983    1,070       785       752       628       604       647       568       745       502       591       613      8,488    
FY18      826    3,012    7,426    8,165    7,940    6,974    7,981    7,390    8,641    8,882    9,802  11,202    88,241    
FY19 11,660  11,438  10,076  10,172    8,539    7,313    9,145    7,434    9,007    8,380    8,746    9,681  111,591  21% 
FY20 11,712  10,702    9,142    8,743    8,067    8,072    9,006              65,444  -2% 

  

Westover Hills 

FY17   9,530    9,400    8,231    8,065    7,407    7,223    7,564    7,848    8,405    6,798    8,059    8,058    96,588    
FY18   8,685    8,571    7,262    7,133    6,933    6,324    6,895    6,548    6,576    6,660    6,186    7,501    85,274    
FY19   8,071    7,787    7,566    7,102    6,120    5,364    7,072    6,155    6,511    6,120    5,793    6,435    80,096  -6% 
FY20   7,419    7,175    5,888    6,137    5,631    5,376    6,043              43,669  -17% 

  

Econtent 

FY17   4,107    3,770    3,470    3,611    3,568    3,899    3,962    3,701    4,370    4,102    3,906    4,494    46,960    
FY18   4,676    4,689    4,042    4,125    3,923    3,874    4,566    4,224    4,835    4,935    5,409    5,320    54,618    
FY19   5,985    6,407    5,683    5,581    5,278    5,874    6,375    5,874    6,532    6,132    6,424    6,798    72,943  25% 
FY20   7,526    7,283    6,250    5,145    4,926    5,365    6,125              42,620  -4% 

  

RPL Total 

FY17 61,902  61,579  52,848  53,440  49,591  46,583  49,303  48,092  53,155  47,666  49,845  52,838  626,842    
FY18 57,515  60,843  56,558  57,424  54,326  48,350  54,710  52,552  55,906  55,332  53,155  59,017  665,688    
FY19 59,970  58,801  56,264  55,594  49,421  43,882  53,267  47,881  53,469  49,055  49,093  54,041  630,738  -6% 
FY20 60,995  56,787  51,225  50,290  43,594  44,091  48,702       355,684  -9% 

  
  

Page 9 of 21 
 



 
Insert Door Count FY20 

DOOR COUNT FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-
19 

Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 TOTAL 

Belmont   6,934    7,335    6,992    6,550    6,032    5,865    6,449              46,157  

Broad Rock   5,768    5,768    5,457    5,571    4,162    4,596    5,277              36,599  

East End   7,605    8,331    6,965    6,743    6,084    6,056    7,132              48,916  

Ginter Park 13,767  11,850  10,575    9,608    7,109    4,819    5,823              63,551  

Hull Street 11,614  10,646    9,344    8,181    6,499    6,550    7,395              60,229  

Main 16,244  15,626  14,553  14,962  12,244  11,434  13,119              98,182  

North Avenue   6,383    6,431    5,580    6,712    5,102    3,812    4,759              38,779  

West End   5,102    4,752    4,127    3,845    3,438    3,736    4,437              29,437  

Westover Hills   8,342    8,287    7,657    7,986    6,575    5,861    7,763              52,471  

TOTALS FY20: 81,759  79,026  71,250  70,158  57,245  52,729  62,154                                               474,321  

TOTALS FY19: 70,641  73,411  62,975  66,230  62,257  48,425  63,139  60,259  67,552  68,862  67,399  70,910  782,060  

TOTALS FY18: 62,057  74,617  69,494  70,700  63,466  55,560  63,750  65,351  68,782  69,881  70,586  71,037  805,281  

 
 
Insert FY20 Door Count vs. Circulation – September 2019 

 
  

Page 10 of 21 
 



 
Insert Programs FY20 

PROGRAMS FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-
19 

Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

Belmont  
Adult Programs 15 13 11 16 10 15 15           95 246 

Adult Attend 90 70 52 102 88 49 92           543 1,321 
Young Adult Programs 1 1 1 0 3 2 1           9 11 

Young Adult Attend 12 31 2 0 0 0 0           45 23 
Juvenile Programs 8 4 3 0 2 2 3           22 90 

Juvenile Attend 258 95 11 0 9 10 39           422 1,953 
Total Attend 360 196 65 102 97 59 131 0 0 0 0 0 1,010 3,297 

Total Programs 24 18 15 16 15 19 19 0 0 0 0 0 126 347 
Broad Rock  

Adult Programs 4 6 18 4 17 18 6           73 231 
Adult Attend 22 37 84 33 81 61 32           350 1,336 

Young Adult Programs 4 4 5 3 6 14 19           55 52 
Young Adult Attend 94 57 73 45 99 65 76           509 708 
Juvenile Programs 16 17 15 15 13 20 32           128 303 

Juvenile Attend 318 277 129 265 361 332 423           2,105 3,637 
Total Attend 434 371 286 343 541 458 531 0 0 0 0 0 2,964 5,681 

Total Programs 24 27 38 22 36 52 57 0 0 0 0 0 256 517 
East End  

Adult Programs 40 35 40 40 26 28 72           281 376 
Adult Attend 264 175 214 285 222 269 268           1,697 3,444 

Young Adult Programs 2 1 4 3 4 2 2           18 55 
Young Adult Attend 14 18 11 5 7 3 5           63 269 
Juvenile Programs 10 18 20 14 13 13 14           102 145 

Juvenile Attend 84 1 72 137 97 88 86           565 2,364 
Total Attend 362 194 297 427 326 360 359 0 0 0 0 0 2,325 6,077 

Total Programs 52 54 64 57 43 43 88 0 0 0 0 0 401 376 
  

Page 11 of 21 
 



 
PROGRAMS FY2020 
(CONTINUED) Jul-19 Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

Ginter Park  
Adult Programs 20 25 32 23 15 12 25           152 267 

Adult Attend 170 276 396 397 196 118 246           1,799 2,651 
Young Adult Programs 2 2 2 1 2 3 1           13 6 

Young Adult Attend 41 12 10 5 10 15 5           98 85 
Juvenile Programs 10 15 3 7 4 3 7           49 129 

Juvenile Attend 181 169 17 98 45 74 85           669 1,537 
Total Attend 392 457 423 500 251 207 336 0 0 0 0 0 2,566 4,273 

Total Programs 32 42 37 31 21 18 33 0 0 0 0 0 214 395 
Hull Street  

Adult Programs 7 5 8 14 12 12 6           64 85 
Adult Attend 95 19 23 41 52 61 51           342 972 

Young Adult Programs 3 3 2 2 1 2 2           15 26 
Young Adult Attend 87 14 8 4 2 0 0           115 323 
Juvenile Programs 16 8 2 8 4 4 1           43 108 

Juvenile Attend 313 134 12 26 28 27 3           543 2,209 
Total Attend 495 167 43 71 82 88 54 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 3,504 

Total Programs 26 16 12 24 17 18 9 0 0 0 0 0 122 219 
Main  

Adult Programs 18 24 30 21 22 18 25           158 124 
Adult Attend 313 765 786 784 454 487 660           4,249 4,609 

Young Adult Programs 13 8 8 10 9 13 9           70 65 
Young Adult Attend 111 39 64 114 104 186 84           702 778 
Juvenile Programs 30 25 29 23 12 19 22           160 265 

Juvenile Attend 827 592 623 480 251 329 333           3,435 5,511 
Total Attend 1,251 1,396 1,473 1,378 809 1,002 1,077 0 0 0 0 0 8,386 10,898 

Total Programs 61 57 67 54 43 50 56 0 0 0 0 0 388 454 
  

Page 12 of 21 
 



 
PROGRAMS FY2020 
(CONTINUED) Jul-19 Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

North Avenue 
Adult Programs 46 38 10 27 8 13 15           157 319 

Adult Attend 285 210 122 140 75 55 49           936 2,903 
Young Adult Programs 2 0 6 5 2 0 1           16 54 

Young Adult Attend 18 0 57 21 20 0 4           120 348 
Juvenile Programs 11 8 0 10 8 9 6           52 280 

Juvenile Attend 273 246 0 84 22 291 73           989 5,075 
Total Attend 576 456 179 245 117 346 126 0 0 0 0 0 2,045 8,326 

Total Programs 59 46 16 42 18 22 22 0 0 0 0 0 225 653 
West End 

Adult Programs 11 10 9 12 7 7 11           67 144 
Adult Attend 121 87 64 101 46 50 91           560 1,041 

Young Adult Programs 1 1 1 0 1 1 1           6 12 
Young Adult Attend 9 5 5 0 5 6 3           33 50 
Juvenile Programs 10 17 14 9 5 4 6           65 205 

Juvenile Attend 174 248 188 45 33 36 163           887 3,605 
Total Attend 304 340 257 146 84 92 257 0 0 0 0 0 1,480 4,696 

Total Programs 22 28 24 21 13 12 18 0 0 0 0 0 138 590 
Westover Hills 

Adult Programs 18 23 16 23 24 15 22           141 214 
Adult Attend 424 429 219 434 506 125 310           2,447 3,598 

Young Adult Programs 3 2 1 1 2 0 1           10 17 
Young Adult Attend 59 66 9 11 11 0 0           156 139 
Juvenile Programs 22 18 10 20 11 11 17           109 254 

Juvenile Attend 396 535 449 717 304 176 364           2,941 4,606 
Total Attend 879 1,030 677 1,162 821 301 674 0 0 0 0 0 5,544 8,343 

Total Programs 43 43 27 44 37 26 40 0 0 0 0 0 260 485 
Grand Total Attend: 5,053 4,607 3,700 4,374 3,128 2,913 3,545 0 0 0 0 0 27,320 55,095 

Grand Total Programs: 343 331 300 311 243 260 342 0 0 0 0 0 2,130 4,312 
  

Page 13 of 21 
 



 
Insert Computer Use FY19 

COMPUTER USE FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-
19 

Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 TOTAL 

Belmont Workstation   1,175    1,255    1,219    1,251    1,041       972    1,189                8,102  
WIFI      963    1,047       931    1,045       787       802       949                6,524  

Broad Rock Workstation   2,131    2,080    1,995    1,952    1,353    1,512    1,813              12,836  
WIFI      903       826       770       784       448       595       739                5,065  

East End Workstation   1,968    2,168    1,819    1,736    1,310    1,388    1,643              12,032  
WIFI   1,236    1,281    1,068    1,100       877       867       880                7,309  

Ginter Park Workstation   1,617    1,418    1,506    1,533    1,109    1,130    1,358                9,671  
WIFI   1,229    1,173       936    1,032       708       829    1,015                6,922  

Hull Street Workstation   1,741    1,770    1,772    1,710    1,543    1,552    1,652              11,740  
WIFI   1,035       889       905    1,092       921       818       855                6,515  

Main Workstation   4,023    3,970    3,808    3,898    2,956    2,896    3,370              24,921  
Childrens Workstation      226       304       132       159       117         72         78                1,088  

WIFI   3,921    4,529    3,597    4,034    3,033    3,715    4,085              26,914  
North Avenue Workstation   1,346    1,448    1,287    1,357    1,281    1,101    1,226                9,046  

WIFI      928       856       824       934       712       841    1,131                6,226  
West End Workstation      754       834       825       768       628       675       867                5,351  

WIFI      568       476       655       893       581       664       643                4,480  
Westover Hills Workstation   1,520    1,497    1,282    1,345    1,106    1,111    1,349                9,210  

WIFI      833       853       705       824       619       627       511                4,972  
TOTALS FY20: 28,117  28,674  26,036  27,447  21,130  22,167  25,353                  178,924  
TOTALS FY19: 21,141  23,182  20,857  28,103  23,493  22,565  27,068  24,764  28,491  26,105  28,577  26,512  300,859  
TOTALS FY18: 15,815  21,725  22,930  24,159  20,415  10,066  22,675  23,448  21,326  22,134  22,591  20,439  247,723  

 
 
 
  

Page 14 of 21 
 



 
Technical Services – Items by Location 

TECHNICAL SERVICES - ITEMS BY LOCATION 

FY2020 Belmont Broad 
Rock 

East 
End 

Ginter 
Park 

Hull 
Street MAIN North 

Avenue 
West 
End 

Westover 
Hills OverDrive 

Jul-19        215      148     147     172     117     379        119     206           213              -    
Aug-19        359      260     201     268     145     572        160     409           347             66  
Sep-19        318      205     203     312     164     565        168     325           330            162  
Oct-19        396      224     251     274     177     696        195     427           410             54  
Nov-19        276      165     177     212     128     472        132     320           306             76  
Dec-19        302      165     195     224     124     580        147     361           319            114  
Jan-20        289      154     174     229     124     499        145     359           264             75  
Feb-20                     
Mar-20                     
Apr-20                     
May-20                     
Jun-20                     

Branch Total FY20:     2,155   1,321  1,348   1,691      979  3,763     1,066  2,407        2,189            547  
Branch Total FY19:     3,525  1,877  2,007  2,450  1,353  6,247     1,963  4,088        3,667         1,320  
Average:        308     189     193     242     140     538        152     344           313             78  

  
 
New Patron Cards 

NEW PATRON CARDS 
FY2020 JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 
Belmont    138     187     114     101       78       78     109                 805  
Broad Rock    129     152     159     137       93       94       96                 860  
East End    120     114     124     107       67       67       91                 690  
Ginter Park      96       79       62       63       60       51       76                 487  
Hull Street    125     130     140       84       90       88     116                 773  
Main    383     411     370     282     360     253     360              2,419  
North Avenue    160     128     169       96       70       64       97                 784  
West End    152     125     119       69       92       64     118                 739  
Westover Hills    153     120     137       95       81       85     129                 800  
Online Reg E-Card    162     229     255     209     167     210     352              1,584  

Total FY20: 1,618  1,675  1,649  1,243  1,158  1,054  1,544        -          -          -          -          -      9,941  
Total FY19: 1,692  1,722  1,623  1,328  1,117     911  1,321  1,150  1,321  1,212  1,320  1,509  16,226  

 
 

Page 15 of 21 
 



 
Insert Operations Budget 

 
  

Page 16 of 21 
 



 
Insert Monthly Report 

 
 

  

Page 17 of 21 
 



 
Insert Pending Gifts Report 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 18 of 21 
 



 
Handout:  Article-ACRL 

 
John E. Ulmschneider Named 2020 ACRL Academic/Research 
Librarian of the Year 
January 22, 2020, by Chase Ollis ACRLinsider Website: https://www.acrl.ala.org/acrlinsider/archives/18893 

 
 

John E. Ulmschneider, dean of libraries and university librarian at Virginia Commonwealth 
University (VCU), is the 2020 ACRL Academic/Research Librarian of the Year. The award, 
sponsored by GOBI Library Solutions from EBSCO, recognizes an outstanding member of 
the library profession who has made a significant national or international contribution to 
academic/research librarianship and library development. 
 
Ulmschneider will receive a $5,000 award on Saturday, June 27, during the ACRL 
President’s Program at the 2020 ALA Annual Conference in Chicago. 
 
“John E. Ulmschneider’s extraordinary achievements as dean of libraries and university 
librarian at the Virginia Commonwealth University Libraries led the committee to name him as 

2020 Academic/Research Librarian of the Year,” said Jeannette E. Pierce, chair of the ACRL Academic/Research 
Librarian of the Year Award Committee and associate university librarian for research, access, and instructional services 
at the University of Missouri Libraries. 
 
“As dean, Ulmschneider successfully advocated for increased financial support; doubled professional staffing; 
championed diversity, equity, and inclusion; strengthened state and regional partnerships; and created a culture of 
innovation at the VCU Libraries,” Pierce continued. “The words of one nominator describing John’s leadership role in a 
regional endeavor perfectly describe his selfless approach to his accomplishments – ‘he has done so with a grin rather 
than a gavel, leading without ego, and with the evident trust and admiration of his colleagues.’” 
 
“I don’t have words adequate to express my gratitude to all of my extraordinary colleagues over the years who have made 
this recognition possible,” Ulmschneider said. “To be included among librarianship’s most accomplished leaders with this 
award, including my mentor, the late Susan Nutter, is deeply moving. I have dedicated my career to building institutional 
cultures that allow every person to flourish and all of us to rise to our best selves, and to develop and resource libraries 
that foster the success of our students and faculty and enrich our diverse communities. I am gratified that ACRL and my 
colleagues have recognized the importance of this work through this award.” 
 
Ulmschneider exemplifies academic and research librarianship through his decades-long career as a champion of 
innovation and inclusion. Under his leadership, VCU developed spaces and resources that meet the needs of 
contemporary students and the evolving academic research university. His investment of time and energy led to the 
expansion and renewal of the James Branch Cabell Library in 2016 and comprehensive updates to public areas of the 
Tompkins-McCaw Library for the Health Sciences. Both libraries are comprised of innovative spaces and offerings ranging 
from maker spaces to technology-rich learning spaces to streamlined service points designed to effectively support users. 
 
He demonstrated his spirit of innovation as an early adopter of state-of-the-art software, initiatives, and services. For 
example, in 2016, Ulmschneider helped guide the launch of the Open Textbook Network consortium in Virginia. At VCU, 
he invested almost $80,000 to underwrite and support VCU faculty redesigning their courses to use affordable course 
content and led VCU in adopting and supporting open community tools and services such as DataCite, DMPTool, Open 
Science Framework, InCommon, Carpentries, and ORCID. 
 
Also known as a champion for special collections and archives, Ulmschneider appointed VCU’s first university archivist in 
2013, leading to a deeper commitment to preserving the history of the university. Through his investment of time and 
stewardship, the VCU Libraries Special Collections and Archives have grown notable collections including book art, comic 
arts, medical artifacts, underrepresented communities, and more. 
 
  

Page 19 of 21 
 

https://www.acrl.ala.org/acrlinsider/archives/date/2020/01
https://www.acrl.ala.org/acrlinsider/archives/author/collis
https://www.acrl.ala.org/acrlinsider/archives/18893
https://www.library.vcu.edu/
https://www.library.vcu.edu/


 
Throughout his career, Ulmschneider has been a strong advocate for diversity, equity, and inclusion, encouraging the 
development of community programming focused on race, social justice, and religion. This programming includes 
17 years of Black History Month lectures celebrating African American experiences and achievements and 34 years of 
Browns-Lyons lectures on some of the most important topics in the Jewish culture and faith. He also championed 
inclusive digital collections such as the Freedom Now Project, which engaged the Prince Edwards Community around 
police surveillance photographs from 1963 civil rights protests, and Mapping the Second Ku Klux Klan, 1915-1940, 
documenting the rise of the Klan with historical and contemporary context. Three VCU Libraries digital collections images 
were selected for inclusion in the inaugural exhibitions of the Smithsonian Institution’s National Museum of African 
American History and Culture. 
 
A purposeful advocate for diversity, equity, and inclusion within the organization, the Cabell Library was the first academic 
building on the Monroe Park campus to offer gender neutral restrooms in 2010 under Ulmschneider’s leadership. A year 
later, he established a Diversity and Inclusion standing committee to develop, oversee, and report on diversity initiatives in 
the VCU Libraries. Through these and other initiatives, Ulmschneider has created a culture at VCU where faculty and staff 
are encouraged to develop projects and ideas that advance the organization. 
 
As a culmination of these efforts, the VCU Libraries successfully achieved membership in the Association of Research 
Libraries in 2018 and received the 2018 ACRL Excellence in Academic Libraries Award and the Library Landmark award 
for the renewed Cabell Library in 2016. 
 
“It is wonderful to recognize John Ulmschneider with ACRL’s top individual recognition,” noted ACRL Executive Director 
Mary Ellen K. Davis. “VCU has benefited from his leadership and career-long focus on innovation and inclusion. His work 
epitomizes the innovative, visionary spirit of the academic and research library community.” 
 
In addition to his work at VCU, Ulmschneider has made significant contributions to advancing libraries in the region 
through his work with the Association of Southeastern Research Libraries (ASERL), including serving as president 
(2010-11), and the Virtual Library of Virginia (VIVA). Additionally, he chaired the Advocacy Task Force for the State 
Council of Higher Education for Virginia Library Advisory Committee to the Virginia General Assembly since 2000, where 
he was a primary advocate for the investment in open educational resources and affordable course content, which led to a 
permanent increase of $600,000 in the VIVA budget to support this initiative. 
 
Prior to joining VCU in 1999, Ulmschneider served in multiple positions at the North Carolina State University Libraries, 
including associate and assistant director for information technology (1996-99), assistant director for library systems 
(1989-96), and head of library systems (1986-89). He also served as systems manager at the College of William and Mary 
Swem Library (1985-86) and systems librarian at the National Library of Medicine (1982-84). 
 
Ulmschneider received his B.A. in Religion from the University of Virginia and M.S.L.S from the University of North 
Carolina-Chapel Hill. 
 
The ACRL Academic/Research Librarian of the Year award dates back to 1978, and past award recipients include 
Kaetrena Davis Kendrick (2019); David W. Lewis (2018); Loretta Parham (2017); Susan K. Nutter (2016); Robert A. Seal 
(2015); Tim Bucknall (2014); Patricia Iannuzzi (2013); Paula T. Kaufman (2012); Janice Welburn (2011); Maureen 
Sullivan (2010); Gloriana St. Clair (2009); Peter Hernon (2008); Lizabeth (Betsy) Wilson (2007); Ray English (2006); 
Ravindra Nath (R. N.) Sharma (2005); Tom Kirk (2004); Ross Atkinson, (2003); and Shelley Phipps (2002). 
 

### 
 

 
  

Page 20 of 21 
 



 
Handout – COR Budget  

 
 

Page 21 of 21 
 






































































	Wednesday, February 26, 2020
	11:45 a.m.
	A G E N D A

	Public Comment Period:  
	Reports:
	 Library Friends 
	 Library Foundation 
	Administration Reports:
	Board Committee Reports:
	 Chairman
	 Finance Committee
	 Facilities Committee
	 Governance Committee
	Unfinished Business:
	 Strategic Plan Updates – Review and Consider Updates.

